# Licensing Sub-Committee

**MINUTES** of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, ME10 3HT on Monday, 22 April 2024 from 12.06 pm - 12.30 pm.

**PRESENT:** Councillors Derek Carnell (Chair), Carole Jackson and Chris Palmer.

**OFFICERS PRESENT:** Chris Hills, Kellie MacKenzie and Helen Ward.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE (VIRTUALLY): Councillors Ann Cavanagh and Hannah Perkin.

#### 840 **Emergency Evacuation Procedure**

The Chair outlined the emergency evacuation procedure.

#### 841 Notification of Chair and Outline of Procedure

The Chair opened the meeting and asked those present to introduce themselves.

#### 842 **Declarations of Interest**

No interests were declared.

#### 843 Consideration of a new premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 - East Street Deli, 3 East Street, Faversham

The Licensing Team Leader introduced the report which asked Members to consider an application for a grant of a new premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 at East Street Deli, 3 East Street, Faversham, ME13 7DH.

The Licensing Team Leader introduced the application as set out in the report and highlighted as below:

•	Sale of alcohol off the premises only	
	Monday – Saturday	10:00 – 17:00
	Sunday	10:00 – 16:00

The Licensing Team Leader referred to the application form submitted, as set out at Appendix I of the report, which incorrectly stated that the applicant sought low-key recorded background music for the same hours as the sale of alcohol. She reported the applicant had confirmed it would be purely background music which the Licensing Team Leader confirmed was incidental to the sale of alcohol and did not require licensing.

The Licensing Team Leader reported that following the statutory 28-day consultation period no responsible authority had made representations, apart from the Police who had requested the imposition of further conditions, set out in paragraph 4.3 on page six of the report, which the applicant had agreed to. There had been one representation against the application from an interested party, set out at Appendix III of the report, on the basis of two of the licensing objectives: the prevention of public nuisance; and protection of children from harm. Two representations in support of the application from both Ward Councillors were set out at Appendix IV of the report.

The Chair invited the applicant to present their case.

The applicant stated that the East Street Deli had been open since October 2023 and sold high quality deli provisions including olive oil, pasta, charcutier and cheese. As a progression of the business, they wished now to sell alcohol such as English wines and locally produced products not aimed at the "casual drinker". The applicant explained she was currently undergoing personal licensing training and would be the Designated Premises Supervisor at the premises. The applicant referred to the requested opening and closing times which showed there was no risk of the premises becoming an off-licence.

The applicant referred to the points raised by the objector and stated that the hours they would be open for the sale of alcohol did not coincide with the time school children would be attending the nearby bakery. The applicant further stated that they had received positive feedback from customers in respect of them offering wines and spirits.

The applicant concluded that they were a responsible shopkeeper and considered the licence would cause no issues to the local community and would enhance the town centre as a retail destination.

The Chair invited Members to ask questions.

In response to a question from a Member the applicant confirmed that no staff would be under the age of 18 years.

The Chair invited the Applicant to summarise their closing remarks.

Members of the Sub-Committee adjourned at 12.16 pm to make their decision. Members of the Sub-Committee the Lawyer (Contentious) and the Democratic Services officer returned to the meeting at 12.25 pm and the decision was announced.

## Resolved:

# (1) That the application be granted subject to the amendments made during the statutory consultation including the Police conditions as set out in the report.

## <u>Chair</u>

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel